

The Joshua Type A Economic Development Corporation will hold a Regular Meeting in the City Hall Council Chambers at 101 S. Main St., Joshua, Texas. This meeting is subject to the open meeting laws of the State of Texas.

Individuals may attend the Joshua Type A EDC meeting in person or access the meeting via videoconference or telephone conference call.

Join Zoom Meeting:

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89500417173?pwd=SKo0Y5jvw2NImQiuDxFGYY9S6zm85f.1

Meeting ID: 895 0041 7173 Passcode: 665435

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ANNOUNCE A QUORUM PRESENT

B. CITIZENS FORUM

The Economic Development Corporation invites citizens to speak on any topic. However, unless the item is specifically noted on this agenda, the Economic Development Corporation is required under the Texas Open Meetings Act to limit its response to responding with a statement of specific factual information, reciting the City's existing policy, or directing the person making the inquiry to visit with City Staff about the issue. No Corporation deliberation is permitted. Each person will have 3 minutes to speak.

C. REGULAR AGENDA

- **1.** Review and discuss questions related to the budget report and financial statement for January 2025. (Staff Resource: M. Peacock)
- 2. Discuss, consider, and possible action on the meeting minutes of January 13, 2025.
- 3. Discuss, consider, and possible action on a Chapter 380 Economic Development Agreement between the City of Joshua and Rumfield Properties regarding 207 North Main Street.
- **<u>4.</u>** Discuss, consider, and possible action on a Chapter 380 Economic Development Agreement between the City of Joshua and Rumfield Properties regarding 204 North Main Street.

D. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS/REQUESTS BY DIRECTORS TO BE ON THE NEXT AGENDA

(Members shall not comment upon, deliberate, or discuss any item that is not on the agenda. Members shall not make routine inquiries about operations or project status on an item that is not posted. However, any Members may state an issue and a request that this issue is placed on a future agenda.)

E. ADJOURN

The Type A Economic Development Corporation reserves the right to meet in Executive Session closed to the public at any time in the course of this meeting to discuss matters listed on the agenda, as authorized by the Texas

Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 551.071 for private consultation with the attorney for the City.

Pursuant to Section 551.127, Texas Government Code, one or more Directors may attend this meeting remotely using videoconferencing technology. The video and audio feed of the videoconferencing equipment can be viewed and heard by the public at the address posted above as the location of the meeting. In addition, a quorum will be physically present at the posted meeting location of City Hall.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Joshua will provide reasonable accommodations for disabled persons attending this meeting. Requests should be received at least 24 hours prior to the scheduled meeting by contacting the City Secretary's office at 817/556-0603.

CERTIFICATE:

I hereby certify that the above agenda was posted on February 06, 2025, by 5:00 p.m. on the official bulletin board at Joshua City Hall, 101 S. Main, Joshua, Texas.

Alice Holloway, TRMC, MMC City Secretary

200 - 4A Economic Development	Current Month Actual	Current Month Budget	Budget Variance	YTD Actual	Annual Budget	% of Budget	Budget Remaining
Revenue Summary							
Tax Revenue	57,464.50	57,750.00	(285.50)	235,547.34	693,000.00	33.99%	457,452.66
Intergovernmental Revenues	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
Investment Earnings	7,087.34	4,166.67	2,920.67	26,941.11	50,000.00	53.88%	23,058.89
Miscellaneous	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
Transfers In	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
Sale of Assets	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
Revenue Totals	64,551.84	61,916.67	2,635.17	262,488.45	743,000.00	35.33%	480,511.55
Expense Summary							
Personnel	0.00	933.50	(933.50)	1,467.53	11,202.00	13.10%	9,734.47
Supplies	0.00	41.67	(41.67)	0.00	500.00	0.00%	500.00
Contract & Professional Services	0.00	90.00	(90.00)	2,367.40	1,080.00	219.20%	(1,287.40)
Debt Service	107,052.75	20,846.66	86,206.09	219,465.35	250,160.00	87.73%	30,694.65
Capital Outlay	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
Utilities	0.00	40.42	(40.42)	37.99	485.00	7.83%	447.01
Special Events	167.90	1,250.00	(1,082.10)	167.90	15,000.00	1.12%	14,832.10
Miscellaneous	2,597.79	43,938.34	(41,340.55)	4,896.92	527,260.00	0.93%	522,363.08
Economic Development	20.00	1,520.00	(1,500.00)	81.00	18,240.00	0.44%	18,159.00
Joshua Station Development	634.88	983.83	(348.95)	2,952.00	11,806.00	25.00%	8,854.00
Transfers Out	0.00	10,818.92	(10,818.92)	0.00	129,827.00	0.00%	129,827.00
Expense Totals	110,473.32	80,463.34	30,009.98	231,436.09	965,560.00	23.97%	734,123.91

200 - 4A Economic Development	Current Month Actual	Current Month Budget	Budget Variance	YTD Actual	Annual Budget	% of Budget	Budget Remaining
Tax Revenue							
200-4003 Sales Tax	57,464.50	57,750.00	(285.50)	235,547.34	693,000.00	33.99%	457,452.66
Tax Revenue Totals	57,464.50	57,750.00	(285.50)	235,547.34	693,000.00	33.99%	457,452.66
Intergovernmental Revenues							
200-4407 ARPA Funding	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
Intergovernmental Revenues Totals	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
Investment Earnings							
200-4600 Interest Income	7,087.34	4,166.67	2,920.67	26,941.11	50,000.00	53.88%	23,058.89
Investment Earnings Totals	7,087.34	4,166.67	2,920.67	26,941.11	50,000.00	53.88%	23,058.89
Miscellaneous							
200-4901 Misc. Revenue	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
Miscellaneous Totals	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
Transfers In							
200-4902 Proceeds From Debt	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
Transfers In Totals	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
Sale of Assets							
200-4904 Proceeds from Disposal	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
Sale of Assets Totals	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
Revenue Totals	64,551.84	61,916.67	2,635.17	262,488.45	743,000.00	35.33%	480,511.55

200 - 4A Economic Development Non-Departmental	Current Month Actual	Current Month Budget	Budget Variance	YTD Actual	Annual Budget	% Budget Used	Budget Remaining
Capital Outlay	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
Contract & Professional Services	0.00	90.00	(90.00)	2,367.40	1,080.00	219.20%	(1,287.40)
Debt Service	107,052.75	20,846.66	86,206.09	219,465.35	250,160.00	87.73%	30,694.65
Economic Development	20.00	1,520.00	(1,500.00)	81.00	18,240.00	0.44%	18,159.00
Joshua Station Development	634.88	983.83	(348.95)	2,952.00	11,806.00	25.00%	8,854.00
Miscellaneous	2,597.79	43,938.34	(41,340.55)	4,896.92	527,260.00	0.93%	522,363.08
Personnel	0.00	933.50	(933.50)	1,467.53	11,202.00	13.10%	9,734.47
Special Events	167.90	1,250.00	(1,082.10)	167.90	15,000.00	1.12%	14,832.10
Supplies	0.00	41.67	(41.67)	0.00	500.00	0.00%	500.00
Utilities	0.00	40.42	(40.42)	37.99	485.00	7.83%	447.01
Non-Departmental Totals	110,473.32	69,644.42	40,828.90	231,436.09	835,733.00	27.69%	604,296.91
200 - 4A Economic Development General Non-Departmental	Current Month Actual	Current Month Budget	Budget Variance	YTD Actual	Annual Budget	% Budget Used	Budget Remaining
Transfers Out	0.00	10,818.92	(10,818.92)	0.00	129,827.00	0.00%	129,827.00
General Non-Departmental Totals	0.00	10,818.92	(10,818.92)	0.00	129,827.00	0.00%	129,827.00
Expense Total	110,473.32	80,463.34	30,009.98	231,436.09	965,560.00	23.97%	734,123.91

5

200 - 4A Economic Development Non-Departmental	Current Month Actual	Current Month Budget	Budget Variance	YTD Actual	Annual Budget	% Budget Used	Budget Remaining
200-00-5150 Training/Travel	0.00	647.08	(647.08)	1,467.53	7,765.00	18.90%	6,297.47
200-00-5160 Dues/Memberships	0.00	286.42	(286.42)	0.00	3,437.00	0.00%	3,437.00
200-00-5213 Uniforms	0.00	41.67	(41.67)	0.00	500.00	0.00%	500.00
200-00-5410 Software Maintenance	0.00	90.00	(90.00)	2,367.40	1,080.00	219.20%	(1,287.40)
200-00-5500 Bond Issuance Costs	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
200-00-5574 2018 Revenue Bonds -	32,052.75	5,229.00	26,823.75	32,052.75	62,748.00	51.08%	30,695.25
200-00-5574 2018 Revenue Bonds -	75,000.00	6,250.00	68,750.00	75,000.00	75,000.00	100.00%	0.00
200-00-5580 Series 2022 Note - Interest	0.00	3,653.83	(3,653.83)	68,921.24	43,846.00	157.19%	(25,075.24)
200-00-5580 Series 2022 Note - Principal	0.00	5,713.83	(5,713.83)	43,491.36	68,566.00	63.43%	25,074.64
200-00-5600 Capital Outlay > \$5,000	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
200-00-5700 Land Purchase	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
200-00-5750 Mobile Technology	0.00	40.42	(40.42)	37.99	485.00	7.83%	447.01
200-00-5800 Community Events	167.90	1,250.00	(1,082.10)	167.90	15,000.00	1.12%	14,832.10
200-00-5840 380 Agreement Expenses	764.24	5,021.67	(4,257.43)	3,063.37	60,260.00	5.08%	57,196.63
200-00-5851 Economic Development	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
200-00-5853 Joshua Area Chamber Of	0.00	1,500.00	(1,500.00)	0.00	18,000.00	0.00%	18,000.00
200-00-5860 Station 1-7-4	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
200-00-5860 Joshua Station Utilities	634.88	983.83	(348.95)	2,952.00	11,806.00	25.00%	8,854.00
200-00-5860 Joshua Station Development	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
200-00-5880 Facade Grant Funding	0.00	7,083.33	(7,083.33)	0.00	85,000.00	0.00%	85,000.00
200-00-5909 Miscellaneous Expense	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
200-00-5920 Downtown Infrastructure	0.00	29,166.67	(29,166.67)	0.00	350,000.00	0.00%	350,000.00
200-00-5930 Advertising	1,833.55	2,666.67	(833.12)	1,833.55	32,000.00	5.73%	30,166.45
200-00-5955 Type A Administrative	20.00	20.00	0.00	81.00	240.00	33.75%	159.00
200-00-5956 Joshua Station Development	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
Non-Departmental Totals	110,473.32	69,644.42	40,828.90	231,436.09	835,733.00	27.69%	604,296.91

200 - 4A Economic Development General Non-Departmental	Current Month Actual	Current Month Budget	Budget Variance	YTD Actual	Annual Budget	% Budget Used	Budget Remaining
200-02-5975 Transfer To General Fund	0.00	10,818.92	(10,818.92)	0.00	129,827.00	0.00%	129,827.00
200-02-5976 Transfer To Debt Service	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
200-02-5978 Transfer To Type B Economic	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
200-02-5979 Transfer To Capital	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
General Non-Departmental Totals	0.00	10,818.92	(10,818.92)	0.00	129,827.00	0.00%	129,827.00
Expense Totals	110,473.32	80,463.34	30,009.98	231,436.09	965,560.00	23.97%	734,123.91



Type A Economic Development Corporation Board Agenda February 10, 2025

Regular Agenda Item

Agenda Description:

Review and discuss questions related to the budget report and financial statement for January 2025. (Staff Resource: M. Peacock)

Background Information:

Financial Information:

City Contact and Recommendations:

Mike Peacock, City Manager

Attachments:

1. Financial Report for January 2025



The Joshua Type A Economic Development Corporation will hold a Regular Meeting in the City Hall Council Chambers at 101 S. Main St., Joshua, Texas. This meeting is subject to the open meeting laws of the State of Texas.

Individuals may attend the Joshua Type A EDC meeting in person or access the meeting via videoconference or telephone conference call.

Join Zoom Meeting:

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88174426684?pwd=00fJoKuvGti7eI0Ihh3m23qPJdkwQa.1

Meeting ID: 881 7442 6684 Passcode: 906383

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ANNOUNCE A QUORUM PRESENT

Director Anderson announced a quorum and called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.

B. CITIZENS FORUM

The Economic Development Corporation invites citizens to speak on any topic. However, unless the item is specifically noted on this agenda, the Economic Development Corporation is required under the Texas Open Meetings Act to limit its response to responding with a statement of specific factual information, reciting the City's existing policy, or directing the person making the inquiry to visit with City Staff about the issue. No Corporation deliberation is permitted. Each person will have 3 minutes to speak.

C. REGULAR AGENDA

1. Review and discuss questions related to the budget report and financial statement for December 2024.

City Manager Peacock presented the budget report and financial statement, noting that there were no major expenditure reported.

2. Discuss, consider, and possible action on the November 12, 2024, meeting minutes.

Motion made by Director Waldrip to approve as presented. Seconded by Director Childers. Voting Yea: President Anderson, Director Morgan, Director Waldrip, Director Childers, Director Henderson, Alternate 2 Walden

Discuss a reimbursement request by Rumfield Properties, Inc. for projects at 204 N. Main and 207 N. 3. Main Street.

City Manager Peacock stated that this item pertains to a potential future 380 Agreement, noting that many issues at the location in question are related to drainage concerns.

City Manager Peacock recommended that a separate 380 Agreement be established for each building.

9

Additionally, City Manager Peacock informed the corporation that the EDC has funds available to ass *Item 2.* if desired.

Owner Robbie Rumfield provided a brief update on his request.

The EDC directed staff to bring 380 Agreements back for consideration at the next meeting.

4. Discussion on updates from the City Manager.

The City Manager gave the following update:

- Taco Bell is now open.
- Whataburger has initiated preliminary site work.
- Burger King Building No current activity.
- **Car Wash** is preparing to begin operations and will soon apply for a temporary Certificate of Occupancy (CO).
- EDC Positions Four top candidates have been selected for consideration.

D. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS/REQUESTS BY DIRECTORS TO BE ON THE NEXT AGENDA

(Members shall not comment upon, deliberate, or discuss any item that is not on the agenda. Members shall not make routine inquiries about operations or project status on an item that is not posted. However, any Members may state an issue and a request that this issue is placed on a future agenda.)

NA

E. ADJOURN

Director Anderson adjourned the meeting at 6:24 pm.

Approved: February 10, 2025

Shelly Anderson, President

ATTEST:

Alice Holloway, City Secretary

CHAPTER 380 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS CHAPTER 380 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into by and between the City of Joshua, Texas ("City"), and Rumfield Properties ("Developer") and effective on the Effective Date, as established herein.

WHEREAS, Developer is developing a retail building and parking lot located at 207 North Main Street in the City ("Property"), to be constructed in accordance with the exhibits attached hereto, and as more fully described herein; and

WHEREAS, a depiction of a Site Plan ("Site Plan") for the Property is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated by reference, and the retail building elevations are attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated by reference; and

WHEREAS, Developer has agreed to construct the parking lot at 207 North Main Street, as depicted in the Site Plan, on property ("Parking Lot Property") owned by the City's Type A Economic Development Corporation, subject to the terms contained in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City has the authority under Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code to make loans or grants of City funds for the purposes of promoting local economic development and stimulating business and commercial activity; and

WHEREAS, Developer and the City agree to be subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement for the reimbursement of funds to Developer for Developer's construction of a parking lot on the Parking Lot Property, and the City and Developer acknowledge and agree that such agreement promotes the continued economic development of the City; and

WHEREAS, Developer and the City recognize that this Agreement and all terms and provisions herein are subject to the laws of the State of Texas; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered and approved this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Developer and the City hereby agree as follows:

1. <u>Authority</u>. The City's execution of this Agreement is authorized by Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code and constitutes a valid and binding obligation of the City. Developer's execution and performance of this Agreement constitutes a valid and binding obligation of Developer in the event Developer proceeds with the construction of a parking lot on the Parking Lot Property in the City. The City acknowledges that Developer is acting in reliance upon the City's performance of its obligations under this Agreement in making its decision to commit substantial resources and money for the construction of the parking lot on the Parking Lot Property.

2. <u>Effective Date</u>. This Agreement shall be effective as of the date the last Party executes this Agreement and shall terminate when all terms and conditions of this Agreement have been fulfilled, specifically when Developer has been fully reimbursed for its costs of the construction of the parking lot, unless otherwise terminated by the Parties.

3. **Parking Lot Construction**. Developer shall construct a parking lot on the Parking Lot Property, subject to the following conditions:

A. The construction plans for the construction of the parking lot shall be approved by the City Engineer prior to the commencement of any construction. The City Engineer shall endeavor to review all submitted construction plans as promptly as feasible and all construction shall be consistent with the approved construction plans.

B. The City, with the concurrence of the City's Type A Economic Development Corporation, hereby grants a license to Developer to construct the parking lot on the Parking Lot Property, and the Parties agree and acknowledge that ownership of the Parking Lot Property shall remain with the City's Type A Economic Development Corporation.

C. The estimated cost for the construction of the parking lot is as of the date of execution of this Agreement. Developer shall obtain at least three (3) bids from qualified contractors for the construction of the parking lot, and the City shall assist Developer with any issues related to the bidding of the parking lot construction project.

D. If during construction of the parking lot, Developer experiences an unavoidable cost increase related to such construction, Developer shall submit a cost increase request to the City. After review and approval of such cost increase by the City, not to be unreasonably withheld, the additional cost shall become a part of the construction costs. Upon completion of the construction of the parking lot, Developer shall submit a copy of its actual final costs for the construction of the parking lot.

E. Developer shall execute a performance bond for the construction of the parking lot to ensure completion of same. The bond must be executed by a corporate entity in accordance with Chapter 2253 of the Texas Government Code, as amended. Further, prior to the City's acceptance of the parking lot, Developer (or any contractor it engages to construct the parking lot) shall execute a "bills paid" affidavit with the City, verifying that all subcontractors have been paid.

F. Upon the City's acceptance of the parking lot, Developer shall provide the City with a two-year warranty and provide same to the City.

4. <u>Reimbursement to Developer by City</u>.

A. Upon acceptance of the parking lot, the City will provide for quarterly payments ("Payments") to be made to Developer by establishing a separate fund at the City, or a subaccount of an existing fund in the City treasury, as deemed appropriate by the City, into which certain Sales Taxes received by the City from the City's downtown will be deposited. When Sales Taxes are received by the City from the State Comptroller, the City shall make Payments to Developer promptly to reimburse Developer the costs it incurred for the construction of the parking lot. In no event shall the City make Payments to Developer until the City has inspected and approved the completed parking lot.

B. The Payments shall consist of a portion of the City's Sales Taxes attributable to businesses located in the City's downtown, as determined by the City in its sole discretion. The Payments shall continue each year until Developer has been fully reimbursed for the costs of the construction of the parking lot, as referenced herein.

C. The Payments shall be paid solely from lawfully available funds. As of the date of execution of this Agreement, the City may reimburse Developer from any of the following revenue streams: general sales tax proceeds or Type A economic development sales tax. Nothing in this Agreement shall obligate the City to designate a certain or exclusive revenue stream to be designated as the sole source of payments to Developer.

5. <u>Termination of this Agreement</u>. This Agreement shall terminate as follows:

A. If Developer has not commenced construction of the parking lot by January 1, 2026. For purposes of this Agreement, "commencement of construction" shall mean written authorization or approval by the City to proceed with construction of the parking lot.

B. If the City has paid to Developer any and all Payments in fulfillment of its financial obligations referenced herein.

C. Any warranty, representation or statement made or furnished to the City by or on behalf of Developer under this Agreement that is false or misleading in any material respect, either now or at the time made or furnished, and Developer fails to cure same within thirty (30) days after written notice from the City describing the violation, or if such violation cannot be cured within such 30-day period in the exercise of all due diligence, then if Developer fails to commence such cure within such 30-day period or fails to continuously thereafter diligently prosecute the cure of such violation, or if Developer learns that any such warranty, representation or statement has become false or misleading at the time that it was made, and Developer fails to provide written notice to the City of the false and misleading nature of such warranty, representation or statement within ten (10) days after confirmed written notice to Developer, the City may declare default of this Agreement.

D. Failure of Developer to comply with or to perform any other term, obligation, covenant or condition contained in this Agreement or in any documents generated or otherwise created attendant to this Agreement or in any way related to this Agreement, or failure of Developer to comply with or to perform any other term, obligation, covenant or condition contained in any other agreement between the City and Developer, and Developer fails to cure such failure within thirty (30) days after written notice from the City describing such failure, or if such failure cannot be cured within such 30-day period in the exercise of all due diligence, then if Developer fails to commence such cure within such 30-day period or fails to continuously thereafter diligently prosecute the cure of such failure, the City may declare default of this Agreement.

E. The dissolution or termination of Developer's existence as a going business, Developer's insolvency, any assignment of all or substantially all of the assets of Developer for the benefit of creditors of Developer, any type of creditor workout for Developer, or the commencement of any proceeding under any bankruptcy or insolvency laws by or against Developer unless, in the case of involuntary proceedings, such proceedings are discharged within sixty (60) days after filing.

6. <u>Miscellaneous Provisions</u>. The following miscellaneous provisions are a part of this Agreement:

A. This Agreement constitutes an entire understanding and agreement of the Parties as to the matters set forth in this Agreement. No alteration of or amendment to this Agreement shall be effective unless given in writing and signed by all of the Parties hereto.

B. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, and all obligations of the Parties created hereunder are performable in Johnson County, Texas. Venue for any action arising under this Agreement shall lie in the state courts of Johnson County, Texas.

C. This Agreement shall become a binding obligation on the Parties on the Effective Date.

D. The City expressly waives its right of immunity to suit for enforcement and collection under this Agreement, but otherwise does not waive any statutory or common law right to sovereign immunity by virtue of its execution hereof.

E. The City represents and warrants that this Agreement has been approved by the City Council in accordance with all applicable public notice requirements (including, but not limited to, notices required by the Texas Open Meetings Act) and that the individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the City has been duly authorized to do so. Developer represents and warrants that this Agreement has been approved by the appropriate action of Developer, and that the individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Developer has been duly authorized to do so. Each Party acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement is binding upon such Party and enforceable against such Party in accordance with its terms and conditions.

F. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be determined by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the Agreement shall, to the extent reasonably possible, remain in force as to the balance of its provisions as if such invalid provision were not a part hereof.

G. If a Party is in default, the aggrieved party may, at its option and without prejudice to any other right or remedy under this Agreement, seek any relief available at law or in equity, including but not limited to, an action under the Uniform Declaratory Judgment Act, specific performance, mandamus, injunctive relief and termination of those provisions of this Agreement applicable to property owned by the defaulting party. Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, no default under this Agreement shall entitle the aggrieved party to the termination of this Agreement.

H. All notices required to be given under this Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be effective when actually delivered or when deposited in the United States mail, first class, postage prepared, addressed to the Party to whom the notice is to be given at the addresses shown below. Any Party may change its address for notices under this Agreement by giving formal written notice to the other Party, specifying that the purpose of the notice is to change the Party's address. For notice purposes, each Party agrees to keep the other informed at all times of its current address.

For the City:	City of Joshua, Texas 101 South Main Street Joshua, Texas 76058 Attention: City Manager
For Developer:	Rumfield Properties, Inc. P.O. Box 1687 Burleson, Texas 76097

I. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same document.

Attention: Robbie Rumfield

J. Except as provided below, this Agreement and the rights and obligations contained herein may not be assigned by Developer without the prior written approval of the City not to be unreasonably withheld.

K. Notwithstanding anything contained herein regarding a time of commencement or completion of the construction of the parking lot, Developer shall be granted such additional time as may be required in the event of "force majeure" so long as Developer is diligently and faithfully pursuing commencement or completion of the

same. For purposes of this Agreement, the term "force majeure" shall mean any contingency or cause beyond the reasonable control of Developer, or its assignee, as the case may be, including, without limitation, acts of God, or the public enemy, war, riot, civil commotion, insurrection, governmental or de facto governmental action, fires, explosions, floods, strikes, epidemics or shortages of essential materials.

FROM THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS AGREEMENT TO THE L. DATE ON WHICH ALL CONSTRUCTION OF THE PARKING LOT IS COMPLETED, AS CONTEMPLATED HEREIN, AND HAS BEEN ACCEPTED BY THE CITY, DEVELOPER, INDIVIDUALLY AND ON BEHALF OF ITS RESPECTIVE OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, PARTNERS. EMPLOYEES, **REPRESENTATIVES**, AGENTS, SUCCESSORS. ASSIGNEES, VENDORS, GRANTEES AND/OR TRUSTEES, DOES HEREBY AGREE TO RELEASE, DEFEND, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS THE CITY AND ITS ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS FROM AND AGAINST ALL DAMAGES, INJURIES (INCLUDING DEATH), CLAIMS, PROPERTY DAMAGES (INCLUDING LOSS OF USE) LOSSES, DEMANDS, SUITS, JUDGMENTS AND COSTS, INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEY'S FEES AND EXPENSES (INCLUDING ATTORNEY'S FEES AND EXPENSES INCURRED IN ENFORCING THIS INDEMNITY), CAUSED BY THE NEGLIGENT, GROSSLY NEGLIGENT, AND/OR INTENTIONAL ACT AND/OR OMISSION OF THE APPLICABLE ITS OFFICERS. DIRECTORS. PARTNERS. DEVELOPER. EMPLOYEES. REPRESENTATIVES, AGENTS, OR ANY OTHER THIRD PARTIES FOR WHOM SUCH DEVELOPER IS LEGALLY RESPONSIBLE, IN ITS/THEIR PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE IMPROVEMENTS CONTEMPLATED HEREIN (HEREINAFTER "CLAIMS"). DEVELOPER IS EXPRESSLY REQUIRED TO DEFEND THE CITY AGAINST ALL SUCH CLAIMS ARISING UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, AND THE CITY IS REQUIRED TO REASONABLY COOPERATE AND ASSIST DEVELOPER(S) IN PROVIDING SUCH DEFENSE.

M. In its reasonable discretion, the City shall have the right to approve counsel to be retained by Developer in fulfilling its obligation hereunder to defend and indemnify the City. The City reserves the right to provide a portion or all of its own defense, at its sole cost; however, the City is under no obligation to do so. Any such action by the City is not to be construed as a waiver of Developer's obligation to defend the City or as a waiver of Developer's obligation to indemnify the City pursuant to this Agreement. Developer shall retain City-approved defense counsel within seven (7) business days of the City's written notice that the City is invoking its right to indemnification under this Agreement.

N. Subsection (L), above, relative to indemnification, shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

O. The recitals contained in this Agreement: (a) are true and correct as of the effective date; (b) form the basis upon which the Parties negotiated and entered into this Agreement; (c) are legislative findings of the City's City Council; and (d) reflect the final intent of the Parties with regard to the subject matter of this Agreement. In the

event it becomes necessary to interpret any provision of this Agreement, the intent of the Parties, as evidenced by the recitals, shall be taken into consideration and, to the maximum extent possible, given full effect. The Parties have relied upon the recitals as part of the consideration for entering into this Agreement and, but for the intent of the Parties reflected by the recitals, would not have entered into this Agreement.

P. This Agreement is executed by the Parties hereto without coercion or duress and for substantial consideration, the sufficiency of which is forever confessed.

Q. Developer certifies that it does not and will not knowingly employ an undocumented worker in accordance with Chapter 2264 of the Texas Government Code, as amended. If during the term of this Agreement, Developer or its successors or assigns is convicted of a violation under 8 U.S.C. § 1324a(f), Developer or its successors or assigns shall repay the amount of the public subsidy provided under this Agreement plus interest, at the rate of eight percent (8%), not later than the 120th day after the date the City notifies Developer or its successors or assigns of the violation.

R. This Agreement may be executed in a number of identical counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original for all purposes. A facsimile signature will also be deemed to constitute an original if properly executed.

S. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the Parties hereto and supersedes all prior agreements, oral or written, with respect to the subject matter hereof. The provisions of this Agreement shall be construed as a whole and not strictly for or against any Party.

T. Invalidation of any one of the provisions of this Agreement by judgment or court order shall in no way affect any of the other provisions, which shall remain in full force and effect. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be determined by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the Agreement shall, to the extent reasonably possible, remain in force as to the balance of its provisions as if such invalid provision were not a part hereof.

U. In the event of any disagreement or conflict concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, and such disagreement cannot be resolved by the signatories hereto, the signatories agree to submit such disagreement to mediation.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]

CITY OF JOSHUA, TEXAS

By: _____ Printed Name: Scott Kimble Title: Mayor

ATTEST:

Alice Holloway, City Secretary

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF TEXAS § SCOUNTY OF JOHNSON §

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of _____, 2025, by Scott Kimble, Mayor of the City of Joshua, Texas, on behalf of said municipal corporation.

Notary Public, State of Texas

My commission expires:

RUMFIELD PROPERTIES, INC.:

Ву:	
Printed Name:	
Title:	

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF TEXAS § SCOUNTY OF JOHNSON §

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of _____, 2025, by _____, _____, _____of Rumfield Properties, Inc., on behalf of said corporation.

Notary Public, State of Texas

My commission expires: _____

Item 3.

EXHIBIT A (Site Plan)

EXHIBIT B (Building Elevations)

CHAPTER 380 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS CHAPTER 380 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into by and between the City of Joshua, Texas ("City"), and Rumfield Properties ("Developer") and effective on the Effective Date, as established herein.

WHEREAS, Developer is developing a retail building and parking lot located at 204 North Main Street in the City ("Property"), to be constructed in accordance with the exhibits attached hereto, and as more fully described herein; and

WHEREAS, a depiction of a Site Plan ("Site Plan") for the Property is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated by reference, and the retail building elevations are attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated by reference; and

WHEREAS, Developer has agreed to construct the parking lot at 204 North Main Street, as depicted in the Site Plan, on property ("Parking Lot Property") owned by the City's Type A Economic Development Corporation, subject to the terms contained in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City has the authority under Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code to make loans or grants of City funds for the purposes of promoting local economic development and stimulating business and commercial activity; and

WHEREAS, Developer and the City agree to be subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement for the reimbursement of funds to Developer for Developer's construction of a parking lot on the Parking Lot Property, and the City and Developer acknowledge and agree that such agreement promotes the continued economic development of the City; and

WHEREAS, Developer and the City recognize that this Agreement and all terms and provisions herein are subject to the laws of the State of Texas; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered and approved this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Developer and the City hereby agree as follows:

1. <u>Authority</u>. The City's execution of this Agreement is authorized by Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code and constitutes a valid and binding obligation of the City. Developer's execution and performance of this Agreement constitutes a valid and binding obligation of Developer in the event Developer proceeds with the construction of a parking lot on the Parking Lot Property in the City. The City acknowledges that Developer is acting in reliance upon the City's performance of its obligations under this Agreement in making its decision to commit substantial resources and money for the construction of the parking lot on the Parking Lot Property.

2. <u>Effective Date</u>. This Agreement shall be effective as of the date the last Party executes this Agreement and shall terminate when all terms and conditions of this Agreement have been fulfilled, specifically when Developer has been fully reimbursed for its costs of the construction of the parking lot, unless otherwise terminated by the Parties.

3. **Parking Lot Construction**. Developer shall construct a parking lot on the Parking Lot Property, subject to the following conditions:

A. The construction plans for the construction of the parking lot shall be approved by the City Engineer prior to the commencement of any construction. The City Engineer shall endeavor to review all submitted construction plans as promptly as feasible and all construction shall be consistent with the approved construction plans.

B. The City, with the concurrence of the City's Type A Economic Development Corporation, hereby grants a license to Developer to construct the parking lot on the Parking Lot Property, and the Parties agree and acknowledge that ownership of the Parking Lot Property shall remain with the City's Type A Economic Development Corporation.

C. The estimated cost for the construction of the parking lot is as of the date of execution of this Agreement. Developer shall obtain at least three (3) bids from qualified contractors for the construction of the parking lot, and the City shall assist Developer with any issues related to the bidding of the parking lot construction project.

D. If during construction of the parking lot, Developer experiences an unavoidable cost increase related to such construction, Developer shall submit a cost increase request to the City. After review and approval of such cost increase by the City, not to be unreasonably withheld, the additional cost shall become a part of the construction costs. Upon completion of the construction of the parking lot, Developer shall submit a copy of its actual final costs for the construction of the parking lot.

E. Developer shall execute a performance bond for the construction of the parking lot to ensure completion of same. The bond must be executed by a corporate entity in accordance with Chapter 2253 of the Texas Government Code, as amended. Further, prior to the City's acceptance of the parking lot, Developer (or any contractor it engages to construct the parking lot) shall execute a "bills paid" affidavit with the City, verifying that all subcontractors have been paid.

F. Upon the City's acceptance of the parking lot, Developer shall provide the City with a two-year warranty and provide same to the City.

4. <u>Reimbursement to Developer by City</u>.

A. Upon acceptance of the parking lot, the City will provide for quarterly payments ("Payments") to be made to Developer by establishing a separate fund at the City, or a subaccount of an existing fund in the City treasury, as deemed appropriate by the City, into which certain Sales Taxes received by the City from the City's downtown will be deposited. When Sales Taxes are received by the City from the State Comptroller, the City shall make Payments to Developer promptly to reimburse Developer the costs it incurred for the construction of the parking lot. In no event shall the City make Payments to Developer until the City has inspected and approved the completed parking lot.

B. The Payments shall consist of a portion of the City's Sales Taxes attributable to businesses located in the City's downtown, as determined by the City in its sole discretion. The Payments shall continue each year until Developer has been fully reimbursed for the costs of the construction of the parking lot, as referenced herein.

C. The Payments shall be paid solely from lawfully available funds. As of the date of execution of this Agreement, the City may reimburse Developer from any of the following revenue streams: general sales tax proceeds or Type A economic development sales tax. Nothing in this Agreement shall obligate the City to designate a certain or exclusive revenue stream to be designated as the sole source of payments to Developer.

5. <u>Termination of this Agreement</u>. This Agreement shall terminate as follows:

A. If Developer has not commenced construction of the parking lot by January 1, 2026. For purposes of this Agreement, "commencement of construction" shall mean written authorization or approval by the City to proceed with construction of the parking lot.

B. If the City has paid to Developer any and all Payments in fulfillment of its financial obligations referenced herein.

C. Any warranty, representation or statement made or furnished to the City by or on behalf of Developer under this Agreement that is false or misleading in any material respect, either now or at the time made or furnished, and Developer fails to cure same within thirty (30) days after written notice from the City describing the violation, or if such violation cannot be cured within such 30-day period in the exercise of all due diligence, then if Developer fails to commence such cure within such 30-day period or fails to continuously thereafter diligently prosecute the cure of such violation, or if Developer learns that any such warranty, representation or statement has become false or misleading at the time that it was made, and Developer fails to provide written notice to the City of the false and misleading nature of such warranty, representation or statement within ten (10) days after confirmed written notice to Developer, the City may declare default of this Agreement.

D. Failure of Developer to comply with or to perform any other term, obligation, covenant or condition contained in this Agreement or in any documents generated or otherwise created attendant to this Agreement or in any way related to this Agreement, or failure of Developer to comply with or to perform any other term, obligation, covenant or condition contained in any other agreement between the City and Developer, and Developer fails to cure such failure within thirty (30) days after written notice from the City describing such failure, or if such failure cannot be cured within such 30-day period in the exercise of all due diligence, then if Developer fails to commence such cure within such 30-day period or fails to continuously thereafter diligently prosecute the cure of such failure, the City may declare default of this Agreement.

E. The dissolution or termination of Developer's existence as a going business, Developer's insolvency, any assignment of all or substantially all of the assets of Developer for the benefit of creditors of Developer, any type of creditor workout for Developer, or the commencement of any proceeding under any bankruptcy or insolvency laws by or against Developer unless, in the case of involuntary proceedings, such proceedings are discharged within sixty (60) days after filing.

6. <u>Miscellaneous Provisions</u>. The following miscellaneous provisions are a part of this Agreement:

A. This Agreement constitutes an entire understanding and agreement of the Parties as to the matters set forth in this Agreement. No alteration of or amendment to this Agreement shall be effective unless given in writing and signed by all of the Parties hereto.

B. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, and all obligations of the Parties created hereunder are performable in Johnson County, Texas. Venue for any action arising under this Agreement shall lie in the state courts of Johnson County, Texas.

C. This Agreement shall become a binding obligation on the Parties on the Effective Date.

D. The City expressly waives its right of immunity to suit for enforcement and collection under this Agreement, but otherwise does not waive any statutory or common law right to sovereign immunity by virtue of its execution hereof.

E. The City represents and warrants that this Agreement has been approved by the City Council in accordance with all applicable public notice requirements (including, but not limited to, notices required by the Texas Open Meetings Act) and that the individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the City has been duly authorized to do so. Developer represents and warrants that this Agreement has been approved by the appropriate action of Developer, and that the individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Developer has been duly authorized to do so. Each Party acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement is binding upon such Party and enforceable against such Party in accordance with its terms and conditions.

F. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be determined by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the Agreement shall, to the extent reasonably possible, remain in force as to the balance of its provisions as if such invalid provision were not a part hereof.

G. If a Party is in default, the aggrieved party may, at its option and without prejudice to any other right or remedy under this Agreement, seek any relief available at law or in equity, including but not limited to, an action under the Uniform Declaratory Judgment Act, specific performance, mandamus, injunctive relief and termination of those provisions of this Agreement applicable to property owned by the defaulting party. Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, no default under this Agreement shall entitle the aggrieved party to the termination of this Agreement.

H. All notices required to be given under this Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be effective when actually delivered or when deposited in the United States mail, first class, postage prepared, addressed to the Party to whom the notice is to be given at the addresses shown below. Any Party may change its address for notices under this Agreement by giving formal written notice to the other Party, specifying that the purpose of the notice is to change the Party's address. For notice purposes, each Party agrees to keep the other informed at all times of its current address.

For the City:	City of Joshua, Texas 101 South Main Street Joshua, Texas 76058 Attention: City Manager
For Developer:	Rumfield Properties, Inc. P.O. Box 1687 Burleson, Texas 76097

I. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same document.

Attention: Robbie Rumfield

J. Except as provided below, this Agreement and the rights and obligations contained herein may not be assigned by Developer without the prior written approval of the City not to be unreasonably withheld.

K. Notwithstanding anything contained herein regarding a time of commencement or completion of the construction of the parking lot, Developer shall be granted such additional time as may be required in the event of "force majeure" so long as Developer is diligently and faithfully pursuing commencement or completion of the

same. For purposes of this Agreement, the term "force majeure" shall mean any contingency or cause beyond the reasonable control of Developer, or its assignee, as the case may be, including, without limitation, acts of God, or the public enemy, war, riot, civil commotion, insurrection, governmental or de facto governmental action, fires, explosions, floods, strikes, epidemics or shortages of essential materials.

FROM THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS AGREEMENT TO THE L. DATE ON WHICH ALL CONSTRUCTION OF THE PARKING LOT IS COMPLETED, AS CONTEMPLATED HEREIN. AND HAS BEEN ACCEPTED BY THE CITY. DEVELOPER. INDIVIDUALLY AND ON BEHALF OF ITS RESPECTIVE OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, PARTNERS. EMPLOYEES, **REPRESENTATIVES**, AGENTS. SUCCESSORS. ASSIGNEES, VENDORS, GRANTEES AND/OR TRUSTEES, DOES HEREBY AGREE TO RELEASE, DEFEND, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS THE CITY AND ITS ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS FROM AND AGAINST ALL DAMAGES, INJURIES (INCLUDING DEATH), CLAIMS, PROPERTY DAMAGES (INCLUDING LOSS OF USE) LOSSES, DEMANDS, SUITS, JUDGMENTS AND COSTS, INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEY'S FEES AND EXPENSES (INCLUDING ATTORNEY'S FEES AND EXPENSES INCURRED IN ENFORCING THIS INDEMNITY), CAUSED BY THE NEGLIGENT, GROSSLY NEGLIGENT, AND/OR INTENTIONAL ACT AND/OR OMISSION OF THE APPLICABLE ITS OFFICERS. DIRECTORS. PARTNERS. DEVELOPER. EMPLOYEES. REPRESENTATIVES, AGENTS, OR ANY OTHER THIRD PARTIES FOR WHOM SUCH DEVELOPER IS LEGALLY RESPONSIBLE, IN ITS/THEIR PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE IMPROVEMENTS CONTEMPLATED HEREIN (HEREINAFTER "CLAIMS"). DEVELOPER IS EXPRESSLY REQUIRED TO DEFEND THE CITY AGAINST ALL SUCH CLAIMS ARISING UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, AND THE CITY IS REQUIRED TO REASONABLY COOPERATE AND ASSIST DEVELOPER(S) IN PROVIDING SUCH DEFENSE.

M. In its reasonable discretion, the City shall have the right to approve counsel to be retained by Developer in fulfilling its obligation hereunder to defend and indemnify the City. The City reserves the right to provide a portion or all of its own defense, at its sole cost; however, the City is under no obligation to do so. Any such action by the City is not to be construed as a waiver of Developer's obligation to defend the City or as a waiver of Developer's obligation to indemnify the City pursuant to this Agreement. Developer shall retain City-approved defense counsel within seven (7) business days of the City's written notice that the City is invoking its right to indemnification under this Agreement.

N. Subsection (L), above, relative to indemnification, shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

O. The recitals contained in this Agreement: (a) are true and correct as of the effective date; (b) form the basis upon which the Parties negotiated and entered into this Agreement; (c) are legislative findings of the City's City Council; and (d) reflect the final intent of the Parties with regard to the subject matter of this Agreement. In the

event it becomes necessary to interpret any provision of this Agreement, the intent of the Parties, as evidenced by the recitals, shall be taken into consideration and, to the maximum extent possible, given full effect. The Parties have relied upon the recitals as part of the consideration for entering into this Agreement and, but for the intent of the Parties reflected by the recitals, would not have entered into this Agreement.

P. This Agreement is executed by the Parties hereto without coercion or duress and for substantial consideration, the sufficiency of which is forever confessed.

Q. Developer certifies that it does not and will not knowingly employ an undocumented worker in accordance with Chapter 2264 of the Texas Government Code, as amended. If during the term of this Agreement, Developer or its successors or assigns is convicted of a violation under 8 U.S.C. § 1324a(f), Developer or its successors or assigns shall repay the amount of the public subsidy provided under this Agreement plus interest, at the rate of eight percent (8%), not later than the 120th day after the date the City notifies Developer or its successors or assigns of the violation.

R. This Agreement may be executed in a number of identical counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original for all purposes. A facsimile signature will also be deemed to constitute an original if properly executed.

S. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the Parties hereto and supersedes all prior agreements, oral or written, with respect to the subject matter hereof. The provisions of this Agreement shall be construed as a whole and not strictly for or against any Party.

T. Invalidation of any one of the provisions of this Agreement by judgment or court order shall in no way affect any of the other provisions, which shall remain in full force and effect. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be determined by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the Agreement shall, to the extent reasonably possible, remain in force as to the balance of its provisions as if such invalid provision were not a part hereof.

U. In the event of any disagreement or conflict concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, and such disagreement cannot be resolved by the signatories hereto, the signatories agree to submit such disagreement to mediation.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]

CITY OF JOSHUA, TEXAS

By: _____ Printed Name: Scott Kimble Title: Mayor

ATTEST:

Alice Holloway, City Secretary

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF TEXAS § SCOUNTY OF JOHNSON §

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of _____, 2025, by Scott Kimble, Mayor of the City of Joshua, Texas, on behalf of said municipal corporation.

Notary Public, State of Texas

My commission expires:

RUMFIELD PROPERTIES, INC.:

Ву:	
Printed Name:	
Title:	

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF TEXAS § SCOUNTY OF JOHNSON §

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of _____, 2025, by _____, _____, _____of Rumfield Properties, Inc., on behalf of said corporation.

Notary Public, State of Texas

My commission expires: _____

Item 4.

EXHIBIT A (Site Plan)

EXHIBIT B (Building Elevations)